Di str.
GENERAL

CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153
12 August 1992

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

HUVAN RI GHTS COW TTEE
Forty-fifth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1153rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Wednesday, 15 July 1992, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. POCAR

CONTENTS

Consi deration of reports subnmitted by States parties under article 40 of the
Covenant (conti nued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to the
O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee at
this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 92- 16398/ 4768B



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153

page

CONS

2
The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m
DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE

COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (CCPR/ C/52/Add.8) (continued)

1

The CHAIRVAN invited the nmenbers of the Committee to resune consideration

of the third periodic report of Belarus (CCPR/ C/52/Add.8). He requested the
del egation of Belarus to reply to the questions in section IV of the list of
i ssues, which read:

2.

Freedom of novenent and expul sion of aliens, right to be recognized as a

person before the law, freedomof religion and expression (arts. 12, 13,
16, 17, 18, 19 and 20)

(a) What is the current status and content of |egislation on entry
and departure?

(b) Pl ease provide information on the actual inplenentation of the
Decree of 25 August 1987 relating to measures taken agai nst foreign
nationals for preventing infection with the AIDS virus, particularly as to
requi red medi cal exam nations and appropriate coercive neasures (para. 49
of the report).

(c) Pl ease provide informati on concerning the [ aw and practice
relating to permissible interference with the right to privacy.

(d) Pl ease el aborate on linmtations, if any, on freedom of
consci ence and religion (para. 60 of the report).

(e) Wth regard to paragraphs 62 to 65 of the report, please
el aborate on the situation in Belarus of the right to seek, receive and
i mpart information and ideas of all Kkinds.

(f) How is the citizenship of Belarus acquired by forner citizens of
the USSR and their descendants? 1Is there a danger that the nunber of
st atel ess persons woul d i ncrease?

(9) I's conscientious objection to armed service tol erated and
regul ated by | aw?"

M. DASHUK (Belarus) said, in response to question (a), that a bill on

entry into and departure from Bel arus had been given a first reading in

Par |

anment. It contained progressive provisions which were in conformty with

the Covenant. On the question of identity papers, in particular, he said that a
new type of passport had been established in which the citizenship of the bearer
woul d be indicated rather than the national group to which he bel onged.
General |y speaking, it should be noted that the rules on entry into and
departure fromthe territory had al ready been anended a short tinme previously
and the curbs on departure elimnated. During the process of preparing the

bill,
t hat

it had been found that there had been serious infringements of the law in
connection; in many cases, citizens w shing



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 3

to leave the territory had been required to present various docunents despite
the fact that the law did not oblige themto do so. The new bill provided for
restrictions on the right to leave the territory only in the case of persons
subj ect to prosecution, or who had not paid their debts, or not fulfilled their
contractual obligations towards other citizens (for exanple, the paynent of
alinony). One restriction was still in force, nanmely the requirement that the
applicant for departure should subnmit a certificate to the effect that he had
officially vacated his dwelling. However, that requirenment would seemto have
lost its significance since the adoption of the law on the privatization of
housi ng, whereby any citizen who left the national territory to settle abroad
was entitled to retain the dwelling he had occupied in the Republic of Belarus
for three years. Furthernore, if an exit visa was refused, an appeal could be
made to the courts, which would pass judgenent on the legality of the decision
In conclusion, he stressed that the bill submitted to Parlianment was in
accordance with the provisions of the Covenant and there was thus every reason
to believe that it would be adopted as it stood.

3. In regard to paragraph (b), it should be borne in mnd that, when the third
periodic report of Belarus (CCPR/ C/52/Add.8) had been submitted, there had been
no special Belarus legislation on the matter and only the |aws of the USSR had
applied. They had included provisions whereby foreign nationals carrying the
AIDS virus had been invited to enter hospital for treatment. |In the event of
refusal to do so, they had been required to | eave the country. However, the

Bel arus authorities had not been obliged to resort to those provisions and no
forei gner had been expelled fromthe territory as an AIDS carrier. So far, a
total of 27 AIDS sufferers had been reported in Belarus, only 2 of whom had been
infected by the virus through sexual relations. He further explained that there

was a bill on the question of the |legal status of foreign nationals and
stat el ess persons which included provisions guaranteeing their rights and
establishing the circunstances, in any case exceptional, in which the nationals

of another country could be expell ed.

4, In regard to paragraph (c), anple information had been provided in the
initial report (CCPR/ C/ 1/Add.27) and the situation had changed very little since
then. However, sone changes had been nade in the legislation, particularly in
regard to article 7 of the Code of Penal Procedure, whereby, henceforward, no
one could be arrested save by virtue of a judicial decision or a warrant from
the public prosecutor of the Republic. Furthernore, it was the latter's duty to

ensure that any person illegally arrested or detained beyond the period
established by | aw was rel eased without delay. A new article 7.1 had been
i ntroduced, providing for the inviolability of the home. |In addition, the

private life of citizens, their correspondence, telephone conversations and

t el egraphi ¢ conmuni cati ons were protected by the | aw. Searches, seizures and
the interception of correspondence nust conformto the legislation in force.

The Code of Penal Procedure set out in detail those cases in which a search or a
sei zure of documents could be carried out, under what conditions and by what
authority, and those cases in which private correspondence could be subjected to
surveillance. Generally speaking, such neasures were taken only in exceptiona
cases, when the person to whomthe nmeasures were addressed was suspected of
having committed a serious offence. Penalties were provided for in cases of

i nfringenent of the provisions protecting privacy. Article 135 of the Pena
Code, for exanmple, provided for a fine and other penalties in cases of violation
of the provisions governing



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 4

the protection of correspondence, tel ephone conversations and tel egraphic
conmuni cations. Since its anendnent in 1988, article 124 of the Penal Code
provided for a crimnal penalty in cases of illegal arrest or deprivation of
freedom Lastly, article 136 of the Code provided for crimnal responsibility
in cases of infringenent of the provisions on the inviolability of the hone.
Il egal searches and expul sions were subject to penalties which could range up
to inprisonnent.

5. M. OGURTSOV (Bel arus) said, in connection with paragraph (d), that a bil
on freedom of conscience was currently being considered by the appropriate
authorities. The bill also guaranteed freedom of religion and Parliament was
expected to adopt it shortly without difficulty.

6. Nearly all the property confiscated fromthe Church had been returned to
it. At the present time, nmany churches and ot her places of worship were being
restored and the population as a whole welconed the lifting of the restrictions
that had affected religi ous observance. There was a marked increase in the

i nterest of young people in religion. The Suprene Council had recently adopted
a decree declaring the main Catholic and Orthodox feast days (Christnas, Easter
etc.) public holidays. Menbers of other faiths were authorized to take time off
fromwork to celebrate their own religious festivals. Representatives of the
various creeds were to be found in the schools, the arnmy and the prison system
where they visited prisoners on request. 1In conclusion, he noted that three

i mportant nenbers of the religious conmunity were currently serving as deputies
in the Suprene Council of the Republic.

7. In regard to paragraph (e), it was clear that the dissemnation of ideas
could not be prevented; the right to seek, receive and inpart information was
practically unlimted in Belarus, save where matters of national security or
prof essi onal secrecy were concerned. There was a strong trend of opinion in
Bel arus in favour of prohibiting pornographic literature. However, given the
difficulty of distinguishing clearly between pornography and eroticism in
practice there was broad tol erance in that respect. H s delegation had no
know edge of any penalties having been inposed in that connection

8. M. DASHUK (Belarus) said that the delegation had replied at Iength to the
guestions in paragraph (f) on the previous day. Supplenenting the informtion
provi ded al ready, he said that Belarus citizens who had left the territory in
the past as a result of repressive nmeasures or illegal expulsion had the right
to return and settle in Belarus, as did their children. They could assert their
right to citizenship through a sinple procedure. At the sanme tinme, the
authorities feared, not w thout reason, that the nunber of stateless persons
woul d i ncrease. The probl em of refugees fromother former Republics of the
former USSR was beconing serious. Thus, Belarus had recently witnessed the
arrival withinits territory of a nunber of Armenians, whomit regarded as

ref ugees because they were being persecuted at honme. However, the Arneni ans had
not asked for political asylumin Belarus. The Republican authorities had
installed themin an area near to M nsk and had al so hel ped themto find

enpl oyment. A nunber of North Gssetians had al so found refuge in Belarus. He
was sure that the authorities would shortly adopt |egislative nmeasures to all ow
statel ess persons and refugees to settle in Bel arus.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 5

9. Wth regard to the inplenentation of article 16 of the Covenant, he said
that no | egislative changes had been nade since the submi ssion of the initial
report (CCPR/ CJ1/Add.27). He added, however, that, under article 8 of the G vi
Code of the Republic of Belarus, everyone was regarded as a person before the
law fromthe nonent of birth to death. Further, all citizens were entitled to
own private property, to choose their place of residence freely, to bequeath
personal property, etc. Also, the law provided not only for the enjoynment of
civil rights fromthe age of majority (18 years of age), but also for
obligations in that connection. Lastly, the lawregulated in detail the
conditions governing the | egal representation of mnors. He added that the | aw
on citizenship provided that any person born in the territory of Bel arus was
automatically a citizen of the Republic.

10. Wth regard to paragraph (g), he said that current |egislation did not
provide for the right to refuse to performarned service on religious grounds.
However, in practice, persons who refused to carry weapons because their faith
forbade themto do so did not performarned service and were allocated to
special units (for exanple, the engineering corps). For the previous five
years, nobody had been prosecuted in Belarus for refusing mlitary service. In
the current year, nearly half of the young nen of the age to do their nilitary
service had refused to do so. The authorities had begun an informati on canpaign
to explain the situation to the popul ation, though w thout inposing penalties on
those who refused. Moreover, there was a bill providing for the establishnent
of a professional arny in Belarus and, if it was adopted, only those who w shed
to do so would engage in nmilitary service. He recalled that, in its Declaration
of National Sovereignty, Belarus had indicated that it wi shed to become a
neutral State and a nucl ear-weapon-free zone. Gven that orientation, the arny
should not in future be maintaining very large forces. In conclusion, he

expl ained that the new bill on nilitary service provided that those who were
called up could refuse to engage in arnmed service on religious grounds.

11. M. SAD said he took it that an exit visa was still required in Bel arus.

If that was indeed the position, it was a matter for concern, because a neasure
of that kind was obviously the expression of an undenocratic system of
governnent. The Belarus authorities, which were nmaking intensive efforts to

i ntroduce denocracy into the country, would be well advised to take the Western
countries as a nodel in legislating on the matter. Although some restrictions
on the right to leave the territory nmight be acceptable, requiring an exit visa
was certainly not the ideal solution. He would Iike to know whet her the Bel arus
authorities had it in mnd to reconsider the need to keep that requirenent.

12. Regarding the acquisition of citizenship by descendants, he asked whet her
the new | egi slative provisions that were expected to be adopted shortly
establ i shed any distinction between the father and the nother in regard to the
transm ssion of nationality to children

13. Lastly, he noted that Belarus was currently engaged in an overall reform of
its legislation. The Republic of Belarus was in a fortunate position since it
coul d take the nodel offered by various denocratic countries as its inspiration
wi t hout having to proceed by trial and error. He would like to



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 6

know whet her the authorities of Belarus did in fact intend to take the standards
adopted in other denocratic countries as their basis in working out their own
| egi sl ative system

14, Ms. HGENS associ ated herself with M. Sadi's concerns. She would Iike
in particular to know, in connection with paragraph (a) of the list, if citizens
woul d henceforward need only a passport in order to be able to go abroad freely.
She al so asked whet her the possession of State secrets would still be one of the
reasons for which certain persons were forbidden to | eave the territory of the
Republic. That would be contrary to the provisions of the Covenant, where
article 12 (3) stipulated that the right to |l eave the territory of the State
could be restricted only on grounds relating to the protection of nationa
security. The possession of a State secret did not seemitself a threat to

nati onal security.

15. She asked whether the provisions whereby citizens of the Republic of

Bel arus needed to receive an invitation in order to be able to go abroad was
still in force. Could the courts be seized of cases in which permission to
| eave the country had been refused?

16. She would like nore specific information on the position of the few
citizens of Belarus suffering fromthe A DS virus, who were apparently forced to
accept hospital treatment and deprived of their individual freedons if they did
not submt to that treatnment. She enphasized that, at the current stage of
research, hospitalization hardly seened justified. She also hoped that article
119 of the Penal Code, which nade honosexuality illegal and persons found guilty
of honmbsexual practices liable to a penalty of up to five years' inprisonnent,
woul d soon be revised and that honosexuals woul d no |l onger be liable to
prosecution and sentencing.

17. In regard to paragraph (f), she noted that the del egati on of Bel arus had
provided information on the restoration of citizenship to persons who had | ost
their status as citizens, and on the position of their descendants. She woul d
also like to know the position of persons sinply of Russian or formerly Sovi et
origin who were residents of Belarus: could they acquire Belarus citizenship
and, if so, under what conditions? Mreover, the delegation had said that the
flow of refugees woul d necessarily involve an increase in the nunber of

statel ess persons in Belarus. That was obviously true, but the question was
rat her whether the CGovernment's current policy in regard to citizenship did not
itself risk creating a situation where there were nore and nore statel ess
persons.

18. Lastly, in connection with paragraph (g), she understood that sone
Jehovah's Wtnesses who had been inprisoned for refusing to carry out arned
mlitary service had been rel eased, then charged again and inprisoned after
their release, on the grounds that the offence was still being committed and
that those who were guilty nust be punished again. |In a certain sense, crines
of opinion were inevitably reconmitted, and in that connection she would like a
further explanation of that kind of "serial prosecution".

19. M. ANDO asked for additional information on freedom of expression and
access to the nmedia. He understood that information nmedia such as tel evision
and radio were still essentially a State nonopoly and he would Iike to know



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 7

whet her steps had been taken to privatize them He also asked whether citizens
of Bel arus had the opportunity to obtain forei gn newspapers and peri odi cal s.

20. M. WENNERGREN, referring to the replies to paragraph (e), said that he
woul d |ike nore specific information on the conditions governing the exercise of
the right to seek information. |In particular, he asked whether the Bel arus
authorities readily authorized Belarus or foreign journalists, or certain groups
of citizens, to search freely through the archives of the adnministrative
services for information of particular interest to them

21. M. MILERSON asked what stage the bill on the right to enter and | eave the
territory of Belarus had reached, and whether the Soviet |aw of 1990,
restricting the right to leave the territory of any person possessing State
secrets, was still in force. 1In sone fornmer Soviet Republics, the situation had
devel oped rapidly and practice had gone ahead of the law. that was perhaps al so
the case in Belarus. |If restrictions on persons possessing State secrets were
still maintai ned, however, such provisions would not only be contrary to the
spirit of the Covenant but unacceptable in a normal denocratic State.

22. He could not see why persons suffering from Al DS shoul d be hospitalized,
since, as far as he knew, there was as yet no neans of treating the disease. In
connection with the law on nationality, which provided that all persons residing
in Belarus were entitled to acquire Belarus nationality, he asked whether
certain persons had been able to choose, for exanple, between the nationality of
Bel arus and that of such former Soviet Republics as Ukraine or Russia.

Regarding permits to settle, which had been conmpul sory, he asked whether the
systemwas still in force, in particular in the large cities of Bel arus.

23. Lastly, he joined Ms. Hggins in referring to the case of the Jehovah's
Wtness who, according to information from Aimesty I nternational, had been

i mprisoned, then rel eased, then sentenced a second tinme. He asked the

del egation of Belarus to provide further details on that type of seria

convi ction.

24, M. ND AYE wel coned the presence of the del egation of Belarus. The replies
gi ven had been frank and the plans described encouraging, and it seenmed to him
for the nost part, that the Republic of Belarus was determined to break with a
sad past narked in general by |ack of respect for human rights.

25. He noted that many Bel arus Jews had applied to enigrate and wondered

whet her there were still many who wished to |l eave. As for conscientious

obj ectors, their nunbers seenmed so high that there were grounds for wondering if
they really were conscientious objectors in the current neaning of the word. At
all events, he was happy to note that the Governnent did not propose to take
coerci ve neasures agai nst conscientious objectors and that it was | eaning nore
towards the establishment of a professional arnmy. In that connection, he would
i ke to know whether the Government had rul ed out the possibility of adopting

t he neasures usually provided for in the legislation of nbst countries, for
exanpl e general or partial nobilization of the population in the case of a
threat to national security.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 8

26. M. PRADO VALLEJO noted with satisfaction that there had been positive
changes in the legislation of the Republic of Belarus and that the current trend
was towards openness and greater respect for human rights. He noted that there
was no serious problemin the country with regard to human rights and wel coned
that fact.

27. He had only one specific question for the delegation. G ven that freedom
of information and expression was apparently fully guaranteed in the country, it
woul d appear that all citizens were entitled to express personal opinions.
However, knowi ng that sone of the nmedia were in fact owned by the State, he
wonder ed whether a citizen whose honour or dignity had been wounded by the
content of an article in a particular publication was entitled to redress, in
other words to wite to the chief editor of the publication in question and
demand that his letter should be duly published. He believed that was a
fundarmental right that all citizens should be able to exercise.

28. M. DASHUK and M. OGURTSOV (Belarus) replied jointly to the questions put
orally by the nmenbers of the Conmittee in connection with the replies previously
given by the delegation to section |V of the list.

29. As far as exit visas were concerned, the requirenent had been elim nated
for diplomats and official delegations, but individuals |eaving the nationa
territory for private reasons still had to be provided with a visa. Those

provi sions should be elimnated in future, but it should be recalled that in
practice it was inmpossible to nove in a short space of time froma totalitarian
to a denocratic regine. 1In regard to the nodels chosen for their denpcratic
experi ence, Belarus was seeking to take as its inspiration the experience of all
countries with denocratic traditions, especially the European countries, and not
to restrict itself to the experience of a single country. In that connection

it had applied for admission to the Council of Europe, where it was expected
shortly to be given the status of a special nenber

30. Onthe rules relating to nationality, there were many texts, but the

Bel arus del egati on woul d send the conplete version to those nenbers of the
Committee who would like to have it. In sunmary, any child of parents having
Bel arus nationality was a citizen of Belarus, regardless of his place of birth.
If one parent was a citizen of Belarus and the other stateless, or a citizen of
anot her country, the situation differed according to the child' s place of birth:
if it was born on Belarus territory, it would obtain Belarus nationality; if it
was not born in the territory of the Republic but both or one of the parents was
a permanent resident, the child would al so have Belarus nationality. [If, at the
time of birth, the parents were pernanently resident abroad and at |east one of
themwas a citizen of Belarus, the child' s nationality would be determ ned by
deci sion of the parents, conmmunicated in witing to the appropriate authorities.

31. On the requirenment of an exit visa to leave the territory of the Republic,
it should be noted that there was conplete freedom of nmovenent within the
Commonweal t h of | ndependent States and that no visa was required to enter or

| eave any of those States. Similarly, an agreenent had been concluded with

Pol and, whereby no visa was required to enter or leave either country. As far
as other countries were concerned, the authorities had it



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153

page 9
in mnd to conclude bilateral agreenments dispensing with visa requirenments. In
reality, obtaining an exit visa posed no problem and it was often harder to
obtain permission to enter a European country. |In that connection, individuals

did in fact have to have received an invitation in order to be able to travel to
a foreign country, but it was the country of destination that inposed that
condition, which was linked with currency matters, since the host must be able
to cover the costs of the visitor's stay. The question of the prohibition from
| eavi ng i mposed on those who possessed State secrets was conplicated, since, in
some cases, the persons concerned were not even known, or again, it mght be
consi dered that even the Mnister of Justice should be prohibited from | eaving
the country because he possessed certain special information. The situation
had, however, devel oped consi derably, and even though the Soviet [aw on entry
into and departure fromBelarus was still in force, it was no longer strictly
applied in practice and no citizen was in fact prevented from | eavi ng Bel arus
for reasons of State secrecy.

32. In connection with the hospitalization of patients suffering fromAIDS, it
shoul d be noted that, in Belarus, the nan in the street, who was very poorly

i nfornmed about the way in which the disease was transnitted, was still very nuch
afraid of AIDS. It was unlikely that the promul gation of |aws could renmedy that
kind of situation. Reference had been nade to the forced hospitalization of
patients; it was in fact a question of persons who refused to undergo a medica
exam nation although they were suspected of carrying the virus. It would be
nore exact, in the case in point, to speak of forced placenent in a nedica

est abl i shnent for purposes of exam nation, because it was not a question of

i mposi ng medi cal treatment on the persons concer ned.

33. The penalties provided for in the former articles 118 and 119 of the Pena
Code for immoral behaviour towards minors still applied.

34. A bill on honpsexuality was being considered and, if it was approved,
crimnal penalties would continue to apply only in the case of acts acconpani ed
by violence involving minors or persons in a situation of dependence. |In cases
of consent, there would be no crininal responsibility.

35. As far as the nationality of persons of Russian or other origin living in
the Republic was concerned, all had becone citizens of Belarus at the time of

t he adoption of the law on nationality (citizenship). Those now arriving in the
country must fulfil four conditions in order to acquire Belarus nationality:
first, they must undertake to respect the Constitution and | aws of the Republic;
second, they rmust master the | anguage sufficiently well to be able to

conmuni cate (that is to say, they must know Bel arusi an, Ukrainian or Polish);
third, they must prove the possession of adequate nmeans of subsistence, such as
a job; fourth, they nust have lived in Belarus for seven years. Those
conditions were not too severe and woul d enabl e persons who genuinely wi shed to
do so to obtain Belarus nationality.

36. 1t had been asked whether there were people who had refused to take Bel arus
nationality. That was inpossible, since its adoption was not conpul sory, and
anyone who did not want it approached sonme other State to request the
corresponding nationality. It was possible, on the other hand, that sone
persons had wi shed to take Ukrainian, Latvian or Estonian nationality.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 10

37. Questions had been asked about freedom of expression and the di ssem nation
of foreign newspapers in Belarus. The television service was a State service,
but there was also a private cable television network, financed by adverti sing,
whi ch had three or four hours' progranm ng daily and was very popular. State
television could not, therefore, be said to have a nonopoly. It was difficult
to privatize tel evision, but new networks woul d gradual |y appear. There was no
restriction on the circulation of foreign newspapers, which could be found in
ki osks near hotels where foreigners stayed and sonetines in others as well
Despite a paper shortage, Bel arus possessed many newspapers, a press for young
people, a political press and a trade press, as well as publications by private
or gani zati ons.

38. In general, information was accessible to all. Those who wi shed to consult
the archives for information on the persecution of a relative could obtain all
the related informati on provided they were close relatives, but foreign
journalists could not do so. Lastly, the press did not hesitate to publish
criticismof the public authorities, including the Mnistry of Justice.

39. As far as the legislation on entry to and departure fromthe territory was
concerned, the former Soviet law remained in force. The new | aw would cone into
force in July 1993, and the intention of the legislature was to abolish all the
restrictions in the Soviet law. Belarus had had to use the Soviet |aw pending
the drafting of its own |legislation. However, practice had nmoved ahead of the

| egi sl ati on bei ng prepared.

40. The requirenment of a permit to settle still existed, but only for the city
of Mnsk. The city had 2 mllion inhabitants and many people wi shed to go there
to live but the authorities had no housing to offer them It was inpossible to
abolish the regulation conpletely for the tine being, because of the housing
shortage, but it was hoped to do so by about m d-1993.

41. In connection with the Jehovah's Wtness who had been nentioned, the

M nistry of Justice had | earned, about a year and a half previously that he was
in detention after a third conviction for refusing to serve in the army, but

al so for hooliganism The Mnistry had asked the Suprenme Court for infornmation;
the Court had exani ned the case and the person in question had been rel eased
despite the convictions. H's delegation was not aware of any Jehovah's

W tnesses being prosecuted for their beliefs, and those professing a particular
faith were not prosecuted provided their creed did not include incitenment to
overthrow t he Governnent. The del egati on possessed no statistics on the nunber
of conscientious objectors but it could say that religi ous grounds were very
often put forward by consci entious objectors.

42. According to the information available to the Mnistry of the Interior,
about 13,000 applications had been received fromJews who wi shed to emgrate.
The nunber had now been consi derably reduced and there was no obstacle to Jew sh
em gration. Wen peopl e whose applications had been refused brought their cases
before the Mnistry of Justice, the Mnistry often found, on consideration, that
al i nony had not been paid, for exanple, that docunments had not been properly
conpl eted, or that there was a child for whom no provision had been nade. In
each particul ar case, therefore, it was necessary to verify whether the refusa
of the application to emgrate was justified or not.



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153
page 11

43. M. Prado Vallejo had asked questions about freedom of the press,
i nformati on nmedi a belonging to the State and, especially, the right of persons
who were victins of lies or slander to demand rectification

44, |t did sonetinmes happen that the media, which had for a long tine not been
free, exaggerated and published reports that did not tally with the facts. The
Mnistry of Justice itself had been the target of unjustified criticism
although it had not taken the matter to court. Belarus legislation on the topic
was precise: if someone was slandered or libelled, he could go to court and
demand rectification of the information. The injured party was entitled to

apol ogi es and a published correction

45. Lastly, the requests for the accreditation of journalists received at the
M nistry of Foreign Affairs of Belarus were all given consideration, and Radio
Li berty had al ready been accredited.

46. The CHAIRMAN invited the delegation of Belarus to reply to the questions in
section V of the list, which read:

Freedom of assenbly and association and right to participate in the
conduct of public affairs (arts. 21, 22 and 25)

(a) VWhat have been the results of the discussion on 'inproving the
| egal regul ation of conditions and procedures for hol di ng peacefu
assenbl i es, processions and denonstrations' and what further steps have
been taken (para. 69 of the report)?

(b) Pl ease provide information on the |laws and regul ati ons gover ni ng
the right to strike. What is the practice in this regard?

(c) Pl ease provide information on the |laws and regul ati ons governi ng
t he founding, registration and financing of political parties. Are there
any parties active and when are nulti-party elections at the State and
local level to be expected?"

47. M. DASHUK (Belarus), replying to the first question, said that his country
had adopt ed provi sions on procedures for holding denonstrations in 1988, in the
course of the electoral campaign. To organize such assenblies, a permt was
needed which in 99 per cent of cases was granted. |In the case of a refusal, the
deci sion could be appeal ed against. |In practice, there were very nany
assenbl i es, processions and denonstrations in the Republic of Belarus, organized
with or without a permit. Thus, in April 1991, when there had been a sharp rise
in prices, all workers had participated in assenblies and denonstrations

organi zed without a permt and no one had been charged. That was normal, since
t he workers had been furious over the rise in prices, which had not been
acconpani ed by any pay increases, and they had wi shed to force Parlianment to

t ake steps.

48. On the second question, concerning the |aws and regul ati ons applicable to
the right to strike, it should be explained that the Soviet |aw was still in
force. The new law just drafted by the Mnistry of Justice did not provide



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153
page 12

for any restrictions on persons participating in strikes. The mners of
Sol i gorsk had | aunched an action in 1991 which in fact constituted a pre-strike
situation - it had not been necessary to call the strike because the dispute had
been settled. Simlarly, the lawers had put thenselves in a pre-strike
position to protest against unduly high taxes. They had succeeded in having the
t axes abolished through the Mnistry of Justice, and there had been no strike as
such.

49. According to the law, the procedures were the follow ng: negotiations were
followed by a pre-strike situation, which, if no agreenent was possible,
resulted in the calling of a strike. That was a new departure, since strikes
had previously been prohibited. Striking was a neans whereby the rights of
groups of citizens could be protected. The new |law now in preparation took into
account the gaps in the Soviet |aw and sought to provi de better guarantees

for the rights of citizens.

50. In regard to the third question, about political parties, provisiona
arrangenents had been adopted by Parlianment at the end of 1990 in regard to the
regi stration of social and political organizations and associ ations, pending the
adoption of the relevant legislation in second reading. The text was a very

| engt hy one whi ch had been prepared by the Mnistry of Justice. So far, 8
political parties, 8 socio-political novenents and 400 ot her socially oriented
associ ati ons had been regi stered. There had been no refusals

in the current year except in the case of the Communi st Party of Bel arus because
of errors in the application. The Party had appeal ed agai nst the refusal of
registration to the Supreme Court, which had ordered the Mnistry of Justice to
register it as the Party of Communists of Belarus. It was the task of the

M nistry of Justice to deal with all such associations, save for religious
associ ati ons which canme under the Council for Religious Affairs. Nearly al
organi zations, sports associations, religious or trade union associations or

ot hers had been regi stered because there was virtually no obstacle. A snal
charge of 700 roubles, the price of a carton of cigarettes, was made to register
a political party.

51. M. SADI asked for further details regarding the grounds for refusing to
regi ster the Communi st Party. He would like to have an idea of the Party's
i nfluence and inportance, as well as its future in the Republic of Belarus.

52. M. PRADO VALLEJO referring to article 25 of the Covenant, wondered what

t he arrangenents were for organizing the "nationwi de discussion" referred to in
paragraph 83 of the report. He asked whether it was a referendum Lastly, in
connection with the new laws on the election of the peoples' deputies, which
strengt hened the new system of people's power, referred to in paragraph 84, he
woul d Iike to know the plans of the Belarus authorities in that connection

53. M. DASHUK (Belarus) replied to M. Sadi that the Party of Communists of

Bel arus has been refused registration not for political reasons but because of
omi ssions and technical defects in the docunents acconpanying the application
The candi dates for registration had clained to be the successors of the forner



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 13

Conmuni st Party, but had submitted docunents as though it was a question of
establishing a new party, and, when the docunents handed to the Mnistry of
Justice had been examined, it had been found that the infornmation in themdid
not correspond to reality: for exanple, in sonme localities, the nmeetings
referred to had not taken place and, in other cases, the docunents had failed to
speci fy the nunber of persons participating in the neetings. However, the
Suprenme Court had decided that the Party of Communi sts of Bel arus nust be

regi stered, and that had been done quite recently, in June 1992, the Mnistry
havi ng requested the resubni ssion of the defective documents. The reasons for
whi ch an application for the registration of a party could be refused were very
specifically defined in the law. for exanple, if a party's aimwas to overthrow
the constitutional authorities by force, or if it called for a change of
frontiers. Wen the docunents submitted were not conplete, the Mnistry

i ndi cated what gaps should be filled in and requested resubmi ssion of the

dossi er.

54, As far as the Conmuni st Party's popularity was concerned, he said that it
currently had nore than 60,000 nenbers and that new nenbers were joining. As
far as the future was concerned, everything would depend on the econom c
situation: if it inproved, the Conmunist Party would |ose ground; if it grew
worse, the Party would serve as a haven for the di scontented.

55. Regarding the arrangenents for the organi zation of the nationw de

di scussion (a question raised by M. Prado Vallejo) and the conditions for

hol ding a referendum he said that, by virtue of a | aw adopted by the Supremne
Council, nearly all bills were published in the information nedia and were the
obj ect of consultations in workers' collectives. Citizens made known their
criticisms and observations. The machinery for a referendum was governed by
law, and Parlianent nerely determ ned the date wi thout pronouncing on the need
to hold such a consultation. |If 50,000 citizens requested it, the Suprene
Council must hold a referendum Since 1990, there had been only one referendum
ai mred at determ ning whether the popul ation of Belarus was in favour of
retaining the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics. Al though the vote had been
in favour, the USSR had nevert hel ess di sappear ed.

56. The new | aw on sel f-managenent recently promnul gated was very inportant
because it elimnated certain superfluous bureaucratic structures and al |l owed
the people to express thenselves increasingly directly. Sone of its provisions
had been criticized and would therefore be anended. Generally speaking, there
m ght be an inpression that the current |egislative systemhad gaps in it, but
it must be realized that the law was in the process of taking shape. It was a
| ong and conplicated procedure and it would be a mistake to try and hurry it.
There were many questions to be resolved and, for the time being, the Suprene
Council was giving priority to the econonic protection of the people, admttedly
at the expense of such matters as entry and exit visas and passports. Thus,
priority was being given to the legislation on privatization,

| and ownership, etc. Therefore, in sonme areas, the Republic of Belarus stil
had to apply the Soviet texts, but it had given itself two years in which to
adopt the nost essential legislation and it would then engage in the carefu
preparation of |legislation on other matters.



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153
page 14

57. His del egation had taken note of all the Conmittee's questions and commrents
and woul d convey themto the Governnment so that they could be taken into

consi deration during the drafting of the new Constitution and the new

| egi sl ati on.

58. The CHAIRVAN invited the nenbers of the Cormittee to make their fina
observations on the consideration of the report of the Republic of Belarus just
conpl et ed

59. M. HERNDL said he was gratified by the skill with which the del egati on of
the Republic of Belarus had presented the situation and thanked it for the
explanations it had provided, although not all the questions had been answered.
The two years which had el apsed since the subm ssion of the third periodic
report had seen unprecedented changes and the Republic of Belarus was currently
at a mmjor turning-point. The dial ogue which had just taken place had brought
out the gaps in the existing |egislation, which were expl ai ned by the fact that
it was still essentially based on the laws of the forner USSR It was to be
hoped that the new | aws, and above all the new Constitution now being drafted,
woul d take into account not only the provisions of the Covenant and ot her

i nternational instruments on human rights but also the Cormmittee's observations.
The whol e juridical systemwas being revised and it was very encouragi ng to hear
the del egation say that the experience of all countries would be studied. Such
an undertaking boded well for the future and it could be hoped that when the

del egation of the Republic of Belarus next appeared before the Conmittee, it
woul d be in a position to describe a new system based on respect for hunman

ri ghts.

60. M. MILERSON stressed the sincerity and frankness with which the

del egati on had described the situation in Belarus. The replies had been
specific, referring not just to the law but also to practice. Undeniable
progress had been nade towards effective guarantees for civil and politica
rights, and he had no doubt that those positive devel opnents woul d conti nue.

The Governnent of Bel arus seenmed to be showing the creativity that was essentia
for progressing fromone systemto another. It was inportant to avoid trying to
imtate other States but, rather, to take into account the situation of each
republic. In the Republic of Belarus, the actual situation had come before the
preparation of the law and it was therefore the nore necessary to be careful not
to nove backwards. Although there mght still be sonme inconpatibility between
its practice and the requirenents of the Covenant, Bel arus was neverthel ess on
the right track, and the way it had chosen to deal with the probl ens of
nationalities, for exanple, or the creation of new State structures, was the

ri ght one.

61. M. EL SHAFEI said that the detailed introduction and in-depth replies of
t he Bel arus del egation had given the Cormittee a nore bal anced picture of the
situation. At a crucial tine of transition, the Republic of Belarus could not
only benefit considerably fromthe experience of other States but could al so
itself serve as an exanple to the other nmenbers of the Comobnweal t h of

I ndependent States since it possessed all the necessary potential and skills.




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 15

62. For the tine being, the Conmttee needed to be assured that the Governnent
woul d proceed to erect a legislative systemthat took into account the

provi sions of the Covenant. He hoped that the fourth periodic report would
describe law and practice that were in every respect conpatible with human

ri ghts.

63. M. PRADO VALLEJO said that the general atnosphere in which the discussion
had taken pl ace denonstrated a genuine will to cooperate on the part of the

Bel arus del egati on whi ch shoul d be wel coned. Everyone was aware of the

consi derabl e effort being made to restructure the systemas a whole and it was
recogni zed that the process took tinme. It nmerely remained to hope that the
restructuring would culminate in a situation in which human rights were fully
guar ant eed.

64. M. SADI enphasized the sincerity and honesty with which the del egati on of
the Republic of Belarus had replied to the Committee's many questions. It was
encouraging to hear that the Committee's coments would be duly taken into
account; in the current period of transition, that was all that could be hoped
for.

65. M. DIMTRIJEVIC thanked the del egation of Belarus for providing, with such
frankness, particularly specific information on the current situation. Belarus
per haps enjoyed an advantage over other countries in a conparable situation in
that the transition had been gradual and therefore reformcould be systematic.
The country had experienced no tragic events, and the Governnment and State
institutions had therefore been able to start on the necessary fundanental
changes. Although the | aws described by the del egation were not all directly
related to the protection of human rights, there was no doubt that such matters
as private property, privatization and the regul ation of foreign investnent
touched on fields that were inportant for the exercise of human rights.

66. Ooviously, for the time being, the Committee could do no nore than await

t he outcone of the process of drafting and revising the |laws and Constitution
and, although it was assured that those in charge were fully aware of the

i mportance of human rights, it nust still wait to see the attitude of the
Governnent and the results of the pluralist elections. 1In any event, the
menbers of the delegation had certainly given the inpression that they w shed to
steer matters in the right direction. There was therefore every reason to
believe that the Commttee' s message, nanely, that the enjoynent of human rights
was an essential element of any denocracy, would be transmitted to the
authorities. He asked the del egation to convey the Committee's good w shes for
success in that enterprise.

67. Mss CHANET thanked the del egation of Belarus for its very detailed replies
to the Conmittee's questions, the nunber and diversity of which was due to the
transitional period through which the State party was passing. Such a mgjor
upheaval demanded a conpl ete change of institutions and | egislation and, perhaps
nost difficult of all, in nodes of thought.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1153
page 16

68. She had noted with satisfaction the lucidity and frankness with which the
del egation had identified the problens that still remained. A |arge nunber of
basi c refornms had been announced and the Committee could only take note of them
expectantly. For the time being, it nmust welcone the denonstrated intent, which
gave grounds for hope of progress in such inportant areas as the reformof the
Penal Code and the Code of Penal Procedure, the nagistracy, the judiciary and
the police. She hoped that the Governnent woul d succeed in conpleting the work
it had begun and would bring the refornms announced to a successful concl usion

69. Ms. HGINS associated herself with the conments of the other nenbers of
the Conmittee. She wished to revert, however, to a particular point about which

she still felt sone concern. It was worrying that the former countries of the
Uni on of Soviet Socialist Republics continued to resist nmaking the |aw on
freedom of novement consistent with the Covenant. |In particular, she did not

under stand why peopl e continued to be denied the right to | eave the country on
the grounds that they possessed State secrets. The del egation of Bel arus had
i ndicated that that criterion would be kept in the new |l aw, even though, in
reality, the provision was hardly ever applied. |If that was the case, the
criterion set forth in article 12, paragraph 3, of the Covenant ("necessary to
protect national security") should be anply sufficient. She urged, therefore,
that the provision concerning persons possessing State secrets should not be
retained in the new | egi slation, because, while current practice m ght be

i beral, nobody knew what the future nmight bring. It would be better to have
i medi ately a | aw guarant eei ng freedom of novenent.

70. She was sure that great progress had been nade, or was being nade, in
Bel arus and thanked the del egation for its replies and the excellent spirit of
cooperation it had denonstrat ed.

71. M. AGU LAR URBINA associated hinmself with those other nenbers of the
Conmittee who had stressed the excellent spirit in which the dialogue with the
Bel arus del egati on had taken place. For his own part, he was still very
concerned about the nunber of offences carrying the death penalty and he found
it hard to understand why it should be inpossible, as the del egati on had

i ndi cated, to reduce the nunber because of public opposition to the abolition of
the death penalty and because of the increase in crinme. Moreover, in a society
whi ch was beconi ng nore open fromthe econonic point of view, it was not
acceptable for the death penalty to be inposed for so | arge a nunber of offences
of a purely econonic character. He hoped that the nunber of offences subject to
the death penalty would be reduced to four, as the Mnister of Justice had said
was his wish.

72. He renai ned sangui ne, however, and believed that the new | egal system about
to be introduced woul d make possible greater respect for human rights.

73. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egati on of Belarus for the frankness with which
it had expanded upon and updated a report which already contained a great dea

of information, a task nade nore difficult by the fact that the period which had
el apsed since the subm ssion of the report had been a tinme of



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1153
page 17

great upheaval. The very constructive dialogue with the Commttee had shed
light on the positive aspects as well as on the grounds for concern which woul d,
it was to be hoped, be taken into consideration during the |egislative and
constitutional review

74. He asked the Belarus delegation to convey to its Governnent the Conmittee's
hopes for its success in the reform exercise.

75. M. DASHUK (Bel arus) thanked the nmenbers of the Conmittee for their
understanding of the situation in Belarus. The delegation, for its part,
understood all the possible criticismand assured the Conmmttee that it would do
everything in its power to ensure that the new | aws woul d be such as to satisfy
its requirenments. In any event, it would pass on to the Governnent all the
constructive conments that had been made.

76. The CHAIRVAN said that the fourth periodic report of the Republic of
Bel arus was due on 4 Novenber 1993, and announced that the Committee had
conpleted its consideration of the third periodic report.

77. The delegation of the Republic of Belarus withdrew

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




